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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
All statements other than statements of historical fact are “forward-looking statements” for purposes of federal and state securities laws, including, but not
limited to, any projections of earnings, revenue or other financial items; any statements of the plans, strategies and objectives of management for future
operations; any statements concerning future production, reserves or other resource development opportunities, any projected well performance or
economics, or potential joint ventures or strategic partnerships; any statements regarding future economic conditions or performance; any statements of
belief; and any statements of assumptions underlying any of the foregoing.
Forward-looking statements may include the words “may,” “should,” “could,” “estimate,” “intend,” “plan,” “project,” “continue,” “believe,” “expect”
or “anticipate” or other similar words. These forward-looking statements present our estimates and assumptions only as of the date of this report. Except
as required by law, we do not intend, and undertake no obligation, to update any forward-looking statement.
Although we believe that the expectations reflected in any of our forward-looking statements are reasonable, actual results could differ materially from
those projected or assumed in any of our forward-looking statements. Our future financial condition and results of operations, as well as any forwardlooking statements, are subject to change and inherent risks and uncertainties. However, whether actual results and developments will conform to our
expectations and predictions is subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, including without limitation the Risk Factors set forth in our
amended Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2011. Such risk and uncertainties, among other things, could cause actual
results to differ materially from those contained in the forward-looking statements.
The factors impacting these risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to:
● estimated quantities and quality of oil and natural gas reserves;
● exploration, exploitation and development results;
● fluctuations in the price of oil and natural gas, including reductions in prices that would adversely affect our revenue, cash flow, liquidity and access to
capital;
● availability of capital on an economic basis, or at all, to fund our capital needs;
● availability of, or delays related to, drilling, completion and production, personnel, supplies and equipment;
● the timing and amount of future production of oil and gas;
● the completion, timing and success of our drilling activity;
● the inability of management to effectively implement our strategies and business plans;
● potential default under our secured obligations or material debt agreements;
● lower oil and natural gas prices negatively affecting our ability to borrow or raise capital, or enter into joint venture arrangements;
● declines in the values of our natural gas and oil properties resulting in write-downs;
● inability to hire or retain sufficient qualified operating field personnel;
● increases in interest rates or our cost of borrowing;
● deterioration in general or regional (especially Rocky Mountain) economic conditions;
● the strength and financial resources of our competitors;
● the occurrence of natural disasters, unforeseen weather conditions, or other events or circumstances that could impact our operations or could impact
the operations of companies or contractors we depend upon in our operations;
● inability to acquire or maintain mineral leases at a favorable economic value that will allow us to expand our development efforts;
● delays, denials or other problems relating to our receipt of operational consents and approvals from governmental entities and other parties;
● unanticipated recovery or production problems, including cratering, explosions, fires and uncontrollable flows of oil, gas or well fluids;
● environmental liabilities;
● loss of senior management or technical personnel;
● adverse state or federal legislation or regulation that increases the costs of compliance, or adverse findings by a regulator with respect to existing
operations;
● changes in U.S. GAAP or in the legal, regulatory and legislative environments in the markets in which we operate; and
● other factors, many of which are beyond our control.
Many of these factors are beyond our ability to control or predict. These factors are not intended to represent a complete list of the general or specific
factors that may affect us.
For a detailed description of these and other factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking
statement, we urge you to carefully review and consider the disclosures made in the “Risk Factors” sections of our SEC filings, available free of charge at
the SEC’s website (www.sec.gov).
We also may make material acquisitions or divestitures or enter into financing transactions. None of these transactions, or their terms. can be predicted
with certainty and the possibility of their occurring is not taken into consideration in the forward-looking statements.
New factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those described in forward-looking statements emerge from time to time, and it is not
possible for us to predict all such factors, or the extent to which any such factor or combination of factors may cause actual results to differ from those
contained in any forward-looking statement. We assume no obligation to update publicly any such forward -looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events, or otherwise.

Part 1. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements
RECOVERY ENERGY, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(UNAUDITED)
September 30,
2012

December 31,
2011

$

$

Assets
Current assets
Cash
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable
Prepaid assets
Commodity price derivative receivable
Total current assets
Oil and gas properties (full cost method), at cost:
Unevaluated properties
Evaluated properties
Wells in progress
Total oil and gas properties, at cost
Less accumulated depreciation, depletion ,amortization, and impairment
Net oil and gas properties, at cost
Other assets:
Office equipment, net
Prepaid advisory fees
Deferred financing costs, net
Restricted cash and deposits
Total other assets
Total assets

$
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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698,276
949,618
1,217,181
96,671
370,000
3,331,746

2,707,722
932,165
2,227,466
75,376
5,942,729

43,541,930
40,460,933
3,986,919
87,989,782

45,697,481
32,113,143
6,425,509
84,236,133

(18,174,968)
69,814,814

(12,099,098)
72,137,035

95,980
304,402
1,026,192
186,240
1,612,814

106,286
574,160
2,341,595
186,055
3,208,096

74,759,374

$

81,287,860

RECOVERY ENERGY, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(UNAUDITED)
September 30,
2012

December 31,
2011

$

$

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Commodity price derivative liability
Related party payable
Accrued expenses
Short term loans payable
Total current liabilities

1,183,415
2,183,053
873,142
4,239,610

2,050,768
75,609
16,475
1,354,204
1,150,967
4,648,023

Long term liabilities
Asset retirement obligation
Term loans payable
Convertible debentures notes payable, net of discount
Convertible debentures conversion derivative liability
Total long-term liabilities

893,754
19,419,197
9,595,053
1,300,000
31,208,004

612,874
20,129,670
4,929,068
1,300,000
26,971,612

Total liabilities

35,447,614

31,619,635

-

-

Commitments and contingencies – Note 8
Shareholders’ equity
Preferred stock, 10,000,000 authorized, none issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011
Common stock, $0.0001 par value: 100,000,000 shares authorized; 18,016,143 and 17,436,825 shares issued and
outstanding as of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively
Additional paid in capital
Accumulated deficit
Total shareholders' equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

1,801
120,566,897
(81,256,938)
39,311,760
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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74,759,374

1,744
118,146,119
(68,479,638)
49,668,225
$

81,287,860

RECOVERY ENERGY, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(UNAUDITED)
Three months ended September
30,
2012
2011
Revenue
Oil sales
Gas sales
Operating fees
Realized gain on commodity price derivatives
Unrealized gains (losses) on commodity price derivatives
Total Revenues

$

Costs and expenses
Production costs
Production taxes
General and administrative
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Impairment of evaluated properties
Total costs and expenses

1,775,383
168,897
42,853
37,341
(130,000)
1,894,474

$

397,793
198,781
1,515,868
1,069,068
3,181,510

Loss from operations
Other income (expense)
Convertible debentures conversion derivative gain (losses)
Interest expense
Net Loss
Net loss per common share
Basic and diluted
Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic and diluted

1,650,702
161,029
85,372
733,830
2,630,933

Nine months ended September
30,
2012
2011
$

344,927
191,364
1,981,026
1,052,946
3,570,263

$

5,534,325
446,386
110,282
402,256
222,788
6,716,037

1,033,635
561,278
5,099,932
2,897,156
3,274,718
12,866,719

1,114,220
630,718
8,837,802
3,194,301
13,777,041

(1,287,036)

(939,330)

(7,156,008)

(7,061,004)

333
600,000
(2,149,931)

62,000
(13,338)
(2,136,950)

(372)
700,000
(6,320,919)

63,115
1,587,699
(6,123,496)

$

(2,836,634)

$

$

(0.16)

$

17,833,466

(3,027,618) $ (12,777,299) $ (11,533,686)
(0.19) $
15,775,135

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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4,685,713
397,298
132,362
49,729
445,609
5,710,711

(0.72) $
17,732,304

(0.75)
15,388,772

RECOVERY ENERGY, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(UNAUDITED)
Nine months ended September
30,
2012
2011
Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:
Amortization of stock issued for services
Share based compensation
Impairment of evaluated properties
Change in fair value of commodity price derivatives
Change in fair value of convertible debentures conversion derivative
Amortization of deferred financing costs, issuance of stock for convertible debentures interest, and accretion of debt
discount
Depreciation, depletion, amortization and accretion

$

(12,777,299) $ (11,533,686)
707,504
1,066,154
3,274,718
(445,609)
(700,000)

373,234
5,592,638
(398,840)
(1,587,699)

3,843,457
2,897,156

3,701,373
3,194,301

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Other assets
Accounts payable and other accruals
Restricted cash
Related party payable
Accrued expenses
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

(433,567)
(21,294)
(867,353)
(17,453)
(16,475)
742,982
(2,747,079)

(891,076)
(19,674)
2,428,101
144,001
15,067
297,330
1,315,070

Cash flows used in investing activities:
Acquisition of undeveloped properties
Sale of unevaluated properties
Investment in operating bonds
Drilling capital expenditures
Additions of office equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

(436,023)
1,443,852
(184)
(4,278,785)
(2,928)
(3,274,068)

(9,033,007)
(160)
(6,876,232)
(40,648)
(15,950,047)

(988,299)
5,000,000
4,011,701

2,129,801
(377,498)
8,000,000
9,752,303

(2,009,446)
2,707,722

(4,882,674)
5,528,744

Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities:
Proceeds from sale of common stock, units and exercise of warrants
Net change in debts
Proceeds from debts
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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698,276

$

646,070

RECOVERY ENERGY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
(UNAUDITED)
NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION
Recovery Energy, Inc. (“Recovery”, “ours”, “us” or the “Company”), a Nevada corporation, is an independent oil and gas company engaged in the
exploration, development and production of crude oil and natural gas. The Company has focused on the Denver-Julesburg Basin (“DJ Basin”) where it holds
126,000 net acres located in Wyoming, Colorado, and Nebraska.
NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation
The accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial statements were prepared by Recovery in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) in the United States applicable to interim financial statements and reflect all normal recurring adjustments which are, in the opinion of
management, necessary to provide a fair statement of the results of operations and financial position for the interim periods. The results of operations for the
interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full fiscal year. Such financial statements conform to the presentation
reflected in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") for the year ended December 31,
2011. The current interim period reported herein should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and summary of significant accounting policies
and notes included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K/A.
All common stock share information is retroactively adjusted for the effect of a 4:1 reverse stock split that was effective October 19, 2011.
Reclassification
Certain amounts in the December 31, 2011 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the September 30, 2012 consolidated
financial statement presentation. Such reclassifications had no effect on net income.
Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include Recovery Energy, Inc. and its wholly−owned subsidiaries Recovery Oil and Gas, LLC, and
Recovery Energy Services, LLC. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Both subsidiaries were inactive and
were dissolved in the fourth quarter of 2011.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of oil and gas reserves, assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. We evaluate our estimates on an ongoing basis and base our estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Although actual results may differ from these estimates
under different assumptions or conditions, we believe that our estimates are reasonable. Our most significant financial estimates are associated with our
estimated proved oil and gas reserves as well as valuation of common stock used in issuances of common stock, warrants and the valuation of the conversion
rights related to the convertible debentures payable.
Liquidity
Cash used in operating activities during the nine months ended September 30, 2012 was $2.75 million; this use of cash, coupled with the cash used in
investing activities, exceeded cash provided by financing activities by $2.0 million, and resulted in a corresponding decrease in cash. This net use of cash
also substantially contributed to a $2.20 million decrease in working capital as of September 30, 2012 as compared to working capital as of December 31,
2011.
In the immediate term, the Company expects that additional capital will be required to fund its remaining capital budget for 2012, partially to fund some of
its ongoing overhead, and to provide additional capital to generally improve its working capital position. In March 2012, the Company secured
commitments to fund up to $5.0 million of additional convertible debentures, all of which had been funded as of September 30, 2012. (See Note 7—Loan
Agreements.)
5

RECOVERY ENERGY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
(UNAUDITED)
NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Pursuant to our credit agreements with Hexagon, LLC (“Hexagon”), a substantial portion of our monthly net revenues from our producing properties is
required to be used for debt and interest payments. In addition, our debt instruments contain provisions that, absent consent of the lenders, may restrict our
ability to raise additional capital. Also, the Hexagon debt is currently due on December 31, 2013, and will need to be extended or retired prior to that date.
The Company will continue to pursue alternatives to address its working capital position and capital structure and to provide funding for the balance of its
planned 2012 expenditures.
Oil and Gas Producing Activities
The Company follows the full cost method of accounting for oil and gas operations whereby all costs related to the exploration, development and acquisition
of oil and natural gas reserves are capitalized. Such costs include land acquisition costs, geological and geophysical expenses, carrying charges on nonproducing properties, costs of drilling, developing and completing productive wells and/or plugging and abandoning non-productive wells, and any other
costs directly related to acquisition and exploration activities. Proceeds from property sales are generally applied as a credit against capitalized exploration
and development costs, with no gain or loss recognized, unless such a sale would significantly alter the relationship between capitalized costs and the proved
reserves attributable to these costs. A significant alteration would typically involve a sale of 25% or more of proved reserves.
Depletion of exploration and development costs and depreciation of production equipment is computed using the units-of-production method based upon
estimated proved oil and gas reserves. Costs included in the depletion base to be amortized include (a) all proved capitalized costs including capitalized
asset retirement costs net of estimated salvage values, less accumulated depletion, (b) estimated future development cost to be incurred in developing proved
reserves; and (c) estimated dismantlement and abandonment costs, net of estimated salvage values, that are not otherwise included in capitalized costs.
The costs of unevaluated properties are withheld from the depletion base until it is determined whether or not proved reserves can be assigned to the
properties. The properties are reviewed quarterly for impairment. When proved reserves are assigned to such properties or one or more specific properties are
deemed to be impaired, the cost of such properties or the amount of the impairment is added to full cost pool which is subject to depletion calculations.
Under the full cost method of accounting, capitalized oil and gas property costs less accumulated depletion and net of deferred income taxes may not exceed
an amount equal to sum of i.) the present value, discounted at 10%, of estimated future net revenues from proved oil and gas reserves, plus ii.) the cost of
unproved properties not subject to amortization (without regard to estimates of fair value), or estimated fair value, if lower, of unproved properties that are not
subject to amortization. Should capitalized costs exceed this ceiling, an impairment expense is recognized.
The present value of estimated future net revenues was computed by applying a twelve month average of the first day of the month price of oil and gas to
estimated future production of proved oil and gas reserves as of period-end, less estimated future expenditures to be incurred in developing and producing
the proved reserves (assuming the continuation of existing economic conditions), less any applicable future taxes.
The Company recognized impairment charges of $3.27 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2012.
Wells in Progress
Wells in progress represent wells that are currently in the process of being drilled or completed or otherwise under evaluation as to their potential to produce
oil and gas reserves in commercial quantities. Such wells continue to be classified as wells in progress and withheld from the depletion calculation and the
ceiling test until such time as either proved reserves can be assigned, or the wells are otherwise abandoned. Upon either the assignment of proved reserves or
abandonment, the costs for these wells are then transferred to the full cost pool and become subject to both depletion and the ceiling test
calculations. During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, the Company transferred $4.98 million of costs from wells in progress in to the full cost
pool.
Loss per Common Share
Earnings (losses) per share are computed based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period presented. Diluted earnings
(losses) per share are computed using the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding plus the number of common shares that would be issued
assuming exercise or conversion of all potentially dilutive common shares. Potentially dilutive securities, such as conversion derivatives and stock purchase
warrants, are excluded from the calculation when their effect would be anti-dilutive. As of September 30, 2012, a total of 6,238,900 and 3,152,941,
respectively of outstanding warrants and derivative shares related to convertible debentures payable have been excluded from the diluted share calculations
as they were anti-dilutive as a result of net losses incurred. Accordingly, basic shares equal diluted shares for all periods presented.
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RECOVERY ENERGY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
(UNAUDITED)
NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
The Company evaluates the pronouncements of various authoritative accounting organizations to determine the impact of new GAAP pronouncements and
the impact on the Company.
In December 2011, the Financial Accounting Standard Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2011-11, Balance Sheet (Topic
210): Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities. This ASU requires the Company to disclose both net and gross information about assets and
liabilities that have been offset, if any, and the related arrangements. The disclosures under this new guidance are required to be provided retrospectively for
all comparative periods presented. The Company is required to implement this guidance effective for the first quarter of fiscal 2014 and does not expect the
adoption of ASU 2011-11 to have a material impact on its financial statements.
Various other accounting standards updates recently issued, most of which represented technical corrections to the accounting literature or were applicable to
specific industries, are not expected to a have a material impact on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
NOTE 3 – OIL AND GAS PROPERTIES
The Company did not complete any major purchases of undeveloped or producing oil and gas properties during the nine and three months ended September
30, 2012.
Effective December 31, 2011, the Company sold 2,838 net acres of undeveloped leases for consideration of approximately $4.5 million. An initial closing
occurred on December 31, 2011, resulting in the Company receiving a cash payment on that date of $3.1 million. The final closing of this transaction
occurred during the three months ended March 31, 2012, at which time the Company received additional net proceeds, after deductions of all closing
expenses, of $1.4 million.
NOTE 4 – WELLS IN PROGRESS
As of September 30, 2012, the Company has one well in progress that has been drilled, completed and is pending further evaluation as to its potential to
ultimately produce commercial quantities of hydrocarbons. This well is currently carried at a cost of $3.82 million. The Company believes that this well
should be ultimately capable of commercial production, but will need to invest additional capital to obtain this status. However, should this well be
ultimately plugged and abandoned, all capitalized costs would be transferred to the full cost pool. Given the current status of the ceiling tests as of
September 30, 2012, the current carrying costs would exceed the ceiling by the amount of $1.44 million, which would flow through the income statement as
an expense if the well were assumed to be non-productive as of September 30, 2012.
Likewise, operations that are being conducted on this well are extending the primary terms of leases that comprise approximately 6,919 net acres and that are
currently being carried at a cost of approximately $4.1 million. Absent a successful completion of this well, the lease terms of some or all of these acres may
expire, and the carrying costs of these leases would also be subject to the ceiling test.
NOTE 5 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND DERIVATIVES
The Company periodically enters into various commodity derivative financial instruments intended to hedge against exposure to market fluctuations of oil
prices. As of September 30, 2012, the Company maintained an active commodity swap for 100 barrels per day through December 31, 2012 at a price of
$96.25 per barrel, a swap for 100 barrels per day for the period of January 1, 2013 through June 30, 2013 at a price of $106.25 per barrel, and a swap for 100
barrels per day for the period of January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 at a price of $96.90.
The amounts of gains and losses recognized as a result of our derivative financial instruments were as follows:
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RECOVERY ENERGY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
(UNAUDITED)
NOTE 5 - FINANCIAL IN-STRUMENTS AND DERIVATIVES (Continued)

Realized gain on commodity price derivatives
Unrealized gains (losses) on commodity price derivatives

$
$

Three months ended
September 30,
2012
2011
37,341 $
733,830
(130,000) $
-

$
$

Nine months ended
September 30,
2012
2011
49,729 $
402,256
445,609 $
222,788

Realized gains and losses occur as individual swaps mature and settle. These gains and losses are recorded as income or expenses in the periods during which
applicable contracts settle. Swaps which are unsettled as of a balance sheet date are carried at fair market value, either as an asset or liability (See Note 6 —
“Fair Value of Financial Instruments”). Unrealized gains and losses result from mark-to-market changes in the fair value of these derivatives between balance
sheet dates. On November 5, 2012, the company liquidated all of its price derivatives for proceeds of $0.60 million.
NOTE 6 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Company measures fair value of its financial assets on a three-tier value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs, used in the valuation methodologies in
measuring fair value:
●
●
●

Level 1 – Observable inputs that reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.
Level 2 – Other inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace.
Level 3 – Unobservable inputs which are supported by little or no market activity.

The fair value hierarchy also requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair
value.
The Company measures its cash equivalents and investments at fair value. The Company’s cash equivalents, short-term investments, accounts receivable,
accounts payable, accrued expenses, interest payable and customer deposits are primarily classified within Level 1. Cash equivalents and short-term
investments are valued primarily using quoted market prices utilizing market observable inputs.
Derivative Instruments
The Company determines its estimate of the fair value of derivative instruments using a market approach based on several factors, including quoted market
prices in active markets, quotes from third parties, and the credit rating of its counterparty. The Company also performs an internal valuation to ensure the
reasonableness of third-party quotes.
In evaluating counterparty credit risk, the Company assessed the possibility of whether the counterparty to the derivative would default by failing to make
any contractually required payments. The Company considered that the counterparty is of substantial credit quality and has the financial resources and
willingness to meet its potential repayment obligations associated with the derivative transactions.
At September 30, 2012, the types of derivative instruments utilized by the Company included commodity swaps. The oil derivative markets are highly
active. Although the Company’s economic hedges are valued using public indices, the instruments themselves are traded with third-party counterparties and
are not openly traded on an exchange. As such, the Company has classified these instruments as Level 2.
In evaluating counterparty credit risk, the Company assessed the possibility of whether the counterparty to the derivative would default by failing to make
any contractually required payments. The Company considered that the counterparty is of substantial credit quality and has the financial resources and
willingness to meet its potential repayment obligations associated with the derivative transactions.
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RECOVERY ENERGY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
(UNAUDITED)
NOTE 6 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Asset Retirement Obligation
The income valuation technique is utilized to determine the fair value of its asset retirement obligation liability at the point of inception by taking into
account: 1) the cost of abandoning oil and gas wells, which is based on the Company’s historical experience for similar work, or estimates from independent
third-parties; 2) the economic lives of its properties, which are based on estimates from reserve engineers; 3) the inflation rate; and 4) the credit adjusted riskfree rate, which takes into account the Company’s credit risk and the time value of money. Given the unobservable nature of the inputs, the initial
measurement of the asset retirement obligation liability is deemed to use Level 3 inputs.
Convertible Debentures Payable Conversion Feature
In February 2011, the Company issued in a private placement $8.40 million aggregate principal amount of three year 8% Senior Secured Convertible
Debentures (“Debentures”) with a group of accredited investors. During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, the Company issued an additional $5.00
million of Debentures, resulting in a total of $13.40 million of Debentures outstanding as of September 30, 2012. As of September 30, 2012, the Debentures
are convertible at any time at the holders’ option into shares of our common stock at $4.25 per share, subject to certain adjustments, including the
requirement to reset the conversion price based upon any subsequent equity offering at a lower price per share amount. The Company engaged a third party
to complete a valuation of this conversion feature as of September 30, 2012 (see Note 7—Loan Agreements). The valuation was completed using Level 3
inputs.
The following table provides a summary of the fair values of assets and liabilities measured at fair value:
September 30, 2012
Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Assets
Commodity derivative instruments
Total assets, at fair value

$
$

-

$
$

370,000
370,000

$
$

Liability
Convertible debentures conversion derivative liability
Total liability, at fair value

$
$

-

$
$

-

$
$

Total
-

$
$

370,000
370,000

(1,300,000) $
(1,300,000) $

(1,300,000)
(1,300,000)

Level 3

Total

December 31, 2011
Level 1
Liability
Commodity derivative instruments
Convertible debentures conversion derivative liability
Total liability at fair value

$
$

Level 2
-

$
$

(75,609)
(75,609) $

- $
(1,300,000)
(1,300,000) $

(75,609)
(1,300,000)
(1,375,609)

The following table provides a summary of changes in fair value of the Company’s Level 3 financial assets and liabilities as of September 30, 2012:
Beginning balance, December 31, 2011
Convertible debentures conversion derivative gain
Additions to derivative liability from Supplemental Debenture
Ending balance, September 30, 2012

$

$

(1,300,000)
700,000
(700,000)
(1,300,000)

The Company did not have any transfers of assets or liabilities between Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 of the fair value measurement hierarchy during the nine
and three months ended September 30, 2012.
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RECOVERY ENERGY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
(UNAUDITED)
NOTE 7 – LOAN AGREEMENTS
Term Loans
The Company entered into three separate loan agreements with Hexagon during 2010. All three loans bear annual interest of 15% and mature on December
31, 2013.
Effective January 29, 2010, the Company entered into a $4.5 million loan agreement, with an original maturity date of December 1, 2010. Effective March
25, 2010, the Company entered into a $6.00 million loan agreement, with an original maturity date of December 1, 2010. Effective April 14, 2010, the
Company entered into a $15 million loan agreement, with an original maturity date of December 1, 2010. All three loan agreements have similar terms,
including customary representations and warranties and indemnification, and require the Company to repay the loans with the proceeds of the monthly net
revenues from the production of the acquired properties. The loans contain cross collateralization and cross default provisions and are collateralized by
mortgages against a portion of the Company’s developed and undeveloped leasehold acreage as well as all related equipment purchased in the Wilke Field,
Albin Field, and State Line Field acquisitions.
We entered into a loan modification agreement on May 28, 2010, which extended the maturity date of the loans to December 1, 2011. In consideration for
extending the maturity of the loans, Hexagon received 250,000 warrants with an exercise price of $6.00 per share. The loan modification agreement also
required the Company to issue 250,000 five year warrants to purchase common stock at $6.00 per share to Hexagon if the Company did not repay the loans in
full by January 1, 2011. Since the loans were not paid in full by January 1, 2011, the Company issued 250,000 additional warrants with an exercise price of
$6.00 per share to Hexagon which was valued at approximately $1.60 million. This amount was recorded as a deferred financing cost and is being amortized
over the remaining term of the loan.
In December 2010, Hexagon extended the maturity date of the loans to September 1, 2011. During the last six months of 2011, Hexagon agreed to
temporarily suspend for five months the requirement to remit monthly net revenues in the total amount of approximately $2.00 million as payment on the
loans. In November 2011, Hexagon extended the maturity to January 1, 2013. In November 2011, Hexagon also temporarily advanced the Company an
additional amount of $0.31 million, which was repaid in full in February 2012. In March 2012, Hexagon extended the maturity of the loans to June 30, 2013,
and in connection there with, the Company agreed to make minimum monthly note payments of $0.33 million, effective immediately. In July 2012,
Hexagon extended the maturity date to September 30, 2013. In November 2012, Hexagon extended the maturity date of the loans to December 31, 2013.
As of September 30, 2012, the total debt outstanding under these facilities is $20.29 million, of which $0.87 million is the current portion of long term debt.
The Company is subject to certain non-financial covenants with respect to the Hexagon loan agreements. As of September 30, 2012, the Company was in
compliance with all covenants under the facilities. If any of the covenants are violated, and the Company is unable to negotiate a waiver or amendment
thereof, the lender would have the right to declare an event of default and accelerate all principal and interest outstanding.
Convertible Debentures Payable
In February 2011, the Company completed a private placement of $8.40 million aggregate principal amount of Debentures. Initially, the Debentures were
convertible at any time at the holders' option into shares of our common stock at $9.40 per share, subject to certain adjustments, including the requirement to
reset the conversion price based upon any subsequent equity offering at a lower price per share amount. Interest on the Debentures is payable quarterly on
each May 15, August 15, November 15 and February 15 in cash or at the Company's option in shares of common stock, valued at 95% of the volume
weighted average price of the common stock for the 10 trading days prior to an interest payment date. The Company can redeem some or all of the
Debentures at any time. The redemption price is 115% of principal plus accrued interest. If the holders of the Debentures elect to convert the Debentures,
following notice of redemption, the conversion price will include a make-whole premium equal to the remaining interest through the 18 month anniversary
of the original issue date of the Debentures, payable in common stock. T.R. Winston & Company LLC acted as placement agent for the private placement and
received $0.40 million of Debentures equal to 5% of the gross proceeds from the sale. The Company is amortizing the $0.40 million over the life of the loan
as deferred financing costs. The Company amortized $0.13 million of deferred financing costs into interest expense during the nine months ended September
30, 2012, and has $0.18 million of deferred financing costs to be amortized through February 2014.
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RECOVERY ENERGY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
(UNAUDITED)
NOTE 7 – LOAN AGREEMENTS (Continued)
In December, 2011, the Company agreed to amend the Debentures to lower the conversion price to $4.25 from $9.40 per share. This amendment was an
inducement consideration to the Debenture holders for their agreement to release a mortgage on certain properties so the properties could be sold. The sale of
these properties was effective December 31, 2011, and a final closing occurred during the three months ended March 31, 2012.
On March 19, 2012, the Company entered into agreements with some of its existing Debenture holders to increase the amount of its Debentures by up to an
additional $5.0 million (the “Supplemental Debentures”). Under the terms of the Supplemental Debenture agreements, proceeds derived from the issuance of
Supplemental Debentures are to be used principally for the development of certain of the Company's proved undeveloped properties, and other undeveloped
leases currently targeted by the Company for exploration, as well as for other general corporate purposes. Any new producing properties that are developed
from the proceeds of Supplemental Debentures are to be pledged as collateral under a mortgage to secure future payment of the Debentures and Supplemental
Debentures. All terms of the Supplemental Debentures are substantively identical to the Debentures. The Agreements also provided for the payment of
additional consideration to the purchasers of Supplemental Debentures in the form of a proportionately reduced, 5% carried working interest in any
properties developed with the proceeds of the Supplemental Debenture offering.
Through July 2012, we received $3.04 million of proceeds from the issuance of Supplemental Debentures, which were used for the drilling and development
of six new wells, resulting in a total investment of $3.69 million. Five of these wells resulted in commercial production, and one well was plugged and
abandoned.
In August 2012, the Company and certain holders of the Supplemental Debentures agreed to renegotiate the terms of the Supplemental Debenture
offering. These negotiations concluded with the issuance of an additional $1.96 million of Supplemental Debentures. The August 2012 modifications to the
Supplemental Debenture agreements increased the carried working interest from 5% to 10% and also provided for a one-year, proportionately reduced net
profits interest of 15% in the properties developed with the proceeds of the Supplemental Debenture offering, as well as the next four properties to be drilled
and developed by the Company.
The Company has estimated the total value of consideration paid to Supplemental Debenture holders in the form of the modified net profits interest and
carried working interest to be approximately $1.16 million, and recorded this amount as a debt discount to be amortized over the remaining life of
the Supplemental Debentures.
We periodically engage a third party valuation firm to complete a valuation of the conversion feature associated with the Debentures, and with respect to
September 30, 2012, the Supplemental Debentures. This valuation resulted in an estimated derivative liability as of September 30, 2012 and December 31,
2011 of $1.3 million and $1.3 million, respectively. The portion of the derivative liability that is associated with the Supplemental Debentures, in the
approximate amount of $0.70 million, has been recorded as a debt discount, and is being amortized over the remaining life of the Supplemental Debentures.
During the nine and three months ended September 30, 2012, the Company amortized $1.65 million and $0.71 million, respectively of debt discounts.
On September 8, 2012, the Company issued 50,000 shares, valued at $0.23 million, to T.R. Winston & Company LLC for acting as a placement agent of the
Supplemental Debentures. The Company is amortizing the $0.23 million over the life of the loan as deferred financing costs. The Company amortized $0.01
million of deferred financing costs into interest expense during the nine months ended September 30, 2012, and has $0.22 million of deferred financing costs
to be amortized through February 2014.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
(UNAUDITED)
NOTE 7 – LOAN AGREEMENTS (Continued)
As of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the convertible debt is recorded as follows:
As of
As of
September 30,
December 31,
2012
2011
$ 13,400,000 $
8,400,000
(3,804,947)
(3,470,932)
$
9,595,053 $
4,929,068

Convertible debentures
Debt discount
Total convertible debentures, net
Annual debt maturities as of September 30, 2012 are as follows:
Year 1
Year 2
Thereafter
Total

$

$

873,142
32,819,197
33,692,339

Interest Expense
For the three months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company incurred interest expense of approximately $2.15 million and $2.14 million,
respectively, of which approximately $1.29 million and $1.50 million, respectively, were non-cash interest expense and amortization of the deferred
financing costs, accretion of the convertible debentures payable discount, and convertible debentures payable interest paid in stock.
For the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company incurred interest expense of approximately $6.32 million and $6.12 million,
respectively, of which approximately $3.8 million and $3.70 million, respectively, were non-cash interest expense and amortization of the deferred financing
costs, accretion of the convertible debentures payable discount, and convertible debentures payable interest paid in stock.
NOTE 8 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Environmental and Governmental Regulation
At September 30, 2012, there were no known environmental or regulatory matters which are reasonably expected to result in a material liability to the
Company. Many aspects of the oil and gas industry are extensively regulated by federal, state, and local governments in all areas in which the Company has
operations. Regulations govern such things as drilling permits, environmental protection and pollution control, spacing of wells, the unitization and pooling
of properties, reports concerning operations, royalty rates, and various other matters including taxation. Oil and gas industry legislation and administrative
regulations are periodically changed for a variety of political, economic, and other reasons. As of September 30, 2012, the Company had not been fined or
cited for any violations of governmental regulations that would have a material adverse effect upon the financial condition of the Company.
Legal Proceedings
The Company may from time to time be involved in various legal actions arising in the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the
Company’s liability, if any, in these pending actions would not have a material adverse effect on the financial positions of the Company. The Company’s
general and administrative expenses would include amounts incurred to resolve claims made against the Company.
Other Contingencies
We could be liable for liquidated damages under registration rights agreements covering approximately 3.2 million shares of our common stock if we fail to
maintain the effectiveness of a prior registration statement as required in the agreements. In such case, we would be required to pay monthly liquidated
damages of up to $0.23 million. The maximum aggregate liquidated damages are capped at $1.37 million.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
(UNAUDITED)
Under the terms of the Supplemental Debenture agreements, the Company has a commitment to drill four additional wells. Such agreements do not specify
the location, timing, target zones, or other conditions related to these wells. However, the Company anticipates that the capital provision required to satisfy
this provision will be approximately $3.3 million.
NOTE 9 - SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common Stock
Effective October 19, 2011, the Company completed a four-for-one reverse stock split of its common shares. All references to common stock and common
stock prices have been adjusted to reflect the effects of the reverse stock split.
As of September 30, 2012, the Company had 100,000,000 shares of common stock and 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock authorized, of which 18,016,143
shares of common stock were issued and outstanding. No preferred shares were issued or outstanding.
During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, the Company granted 356,865 shares of common stock as restricted stock grants to employees, board
members, and consultants valued at $1.49 million. The Company also issued 197,619 shares for payment of quarterly interest expense on the convertible
debentures valued at $0.69 million, and 50,000 shares, valued at $0.23 million, to T.R. Winston & Company LLC for acting as placement agent of the
Supplemental Debentures.
Warrants
During September 2012, the Company entered into an agreement to issue 600,000 warrants to a financial advisory group. The 600,000 warrants vest monthly
in six equal amounts over the six month term of the agreement, have a term of 3 years, and a strike price of $5.00 per share. The Company records an expense
for the value of the warrants on each vesting date. During the three months ended September 30, 2012, the Company recorded an expense of $0.08 million
for the 100,000 warrants that were vested as of September 30, 2012. Additionally, the agreement provides that the Company will pay a monthly consulting
fee of $10,000, with a final payment of $90,000 during the last month of the contract. The Company may cancel the agreement at any time to avoid any
future cash payments or vesting of remaining unvested warrants.
A summary of warrant activity for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 is presented below:

Warrants
5,638,900
600,000
6,238,900

Outstanding at December 31, 2011
Granted
Exercised, forfeited, or expired
Outstanding at September 30, 2012

WeightedAverage
Exercise Price
$
7.04
5.00
$
6.84

The aggregate intrinsic value of the warrants was approximately $0 as of both September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, based on the Company’s closing
common stock price of $4.40 and $3.01, respectively; and the weighted average remaining contract life was 2.81 years and 3.18 years, respectively.
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NOTE 10 - SHARE BASED COMPENSATION
In September 2012, the Company adopted the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”). Each member of the board of directors and the management team has
been periodically awarded restricted stock grants, and in the future will be awarded such grants under the terms of the Plan.
The costs of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments are based on the grant-date fair value of the award, recognized over
the period during which an employee is required to provide services in exchange for such award.
During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, the Company granted 256,866 shares of restricted common stock to employees and directors of which
52,698, 81,250, 81,250, and 25,001 shares vest during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2013, 2014, and 2015, respectively. The fair value of these share
grants was calculated to be approximately $0.78 million. The Company also granted 100,000 shares to a consultant and 50,000 shares to T.R. Winston &
Company LLC for acting as a placement agent of the Supplemental Debentures, valued at $0.58 million
The Company recognized stock compensation expense of approximately $0.80 million and $0.37 million, respectively for the nine and three months ended
September 30, 2012, and $5.59 million, and $0.92 million, respectively for the nine and three months ended September 30, 2011.
A summary of restricted stock grant activity for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 is presented below:
Shares
2,340,235
356,865
(385,749)
(25,167)
2,286,184

Balance outstanding at December 31, 2011
Granted
Vested
Expired
Balance outstanding at September 30, 2012

Total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested stock grants was approximately $2.187 million as of September 30, 2012. The cost at September
30, 2012 is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average remaining service period of 3 years.
NOTE 11—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On November 5, 2012, the Company liquidated all of its price derivatives for proceeds of $0.60 million.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Overview
Recovery Energy Inc. is a Denver based independent oil and gas company engaged in the acquisition, drilling and production of oil and natural gas
properties and prospects within the Denver-Julesburg (“DJ”) Basin. Our business strategy is designed to maximize shareholder value by leveraging the
knowledge, expertise and experience of our management team and via the future exploration and development of the approximate 126,000 net acres of
developed and undeveloped leases that are currently held by the Company, primarily in the northern DJ Basin.
Recent Developments
In February 2011, we issued in a private placement $8.4 million aggregate principal amount of three year 8% senior secured convertible debentures with a
group of accredited investors. In March 2012, some investors in the convertible debenture agreed to purchase up to $5.0 million of additional convertible
debentures (the “Supplemental Debentures”). The additional capital provided by the Supplemental Debentures has been used to partially fund the 2012
Capital Budget, and specifically for the drilling and development of certain proven undeveloped and other properties held by the Company, and for general
corporate purposes. The initial funding under the March 2012 agreement occurred in March and continued through July 2012 in the amount of $3.04
million. These proceeds were used to fund the drilling and development of six new wells, resulting in a total investment of $3.69 million. Five of these wells
resulted in commercial production, and one well was plugged and abandoned.
In August 2012, the Company restructured the terms of the Supplemental Debenture offering and concluded the offering by issuing an additional $1.96
million of convertible debentures. On September 8, 2012, the Company issued 50,000 shares, valued at $0.23 million, to T.R. Winston & Company LLC for
acting as a placement agent of the Supplemental Debentures.
In February 2012, the Company completed the sale of its Grover Prospect acreage.
In March 2012, Hexagon agreed to extend the maturity of its term loans to June 30, 2013, and in connection therewith, we agreed to make minimum monthly
loan payments of $0.33 million, effective immediately. In July 2012, Hexagon agreed to extend the maturity of its term loans to September 30, 2013.
In November 2012, Hexagon extended the maturity date to December 31, 2013.
In April, 2012, we made the decision to temporarily abandon one of our unconventional Niobrara wells that was categorized as a well in progress as of
December 31, 2011. In conjunction with that decision, all capitalized drilling, completion and allocable lease costs related to this well in the amount of $4.8
million were transferred to developed properties. This transfer of costs contributed to a $3.27 impairment charge of developed properties derived from the
ceiling test completed as of March 31, 2012.
On November 5, 2012, the Company liquidated all of its price derivatives for proceeds of $0.60 million.
Results of Operations
Three Months Ended September 30, 2012 compared to the Three Months Ended September 30, 2011.
The Company reported net losses for the three months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 of approximately $2.84 million and $3.03 million, respectively.
Three months ended September
30,
2012
2011
Revenues and other income:
Oil sales
Gas sales
Realized gain on commodity hedges
Unrealized (losses) on commodity price derivatives
Other
Total revenues and other income
Expenses:
Production costs
Production taxes
General and administrative
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Total expenses
Loss from continuing operations
Interest expense

$

Other
Conversion debenture derivative gain(loss)
Net loss

$
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1,775,383
168,897
37,341
(130,000)
42,853
1,894,474

$

1,650,702
161,029
733,830
85,372
2,630,933

397,793
198,781
1,515,868
1,069,068
3,181,510
(1,287,036)
(2,149,931)

344,927
191,364
1,981,026
1,052,946
3,570,263
(939,330)
(2,136,950)

333
600,000
(2,836,634) $

62,000
(13,338)
(3,027,618)

Oil and Gas Revenues and Production
Oil and gas revenues were $1.94 million for the three months ended September 30, 2012, as compared to $1.81 million for the three months ended September
30, 2011, an increase of $.13 million, or 7.18%. Our production volume on a BOE basis was 33,618 for the three months ended September 30, 2012, as
compared to 33,698 for the three months ended September 30, 2011, a nominal decrease that was effected by increased production attributed to five new
wells, but offset by normal production declines on more mature properties. Average oil and gas prices during the three months ended September 30, 2012
increased slightly as compared to the prior year.
A comparison of production and average prices for the three months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, follows:
Three Months Ended
September 30,
2012
2011
Product:
Oil (Bbls)-volume
Oil (Bbls)- average price (1)

$

Natural Gas (Mcf)-volume
NGL’s-(BOE)
Natural Gas (Mcf)- average price (2)
Barrels of oil equivalent (BOE)
Average daily net production (BOE)
(1)
(2)

$

21,151
83.94

$

29,061
7,624
5.81
33,618
365

$

20,145
81.94
31,579
8,290
5.10
33,698
366

Does not include the realized price effects of hedges
Includes proceeds from the sale of NGL’s.

Oil and gas production expenses, depreciation, depletion and amortization
Three Months
Ended
September 30,
2012
(per BOE)
$
57.83

Three Months
Ended
September 30,
2011
(per BOE)
$
53.76

Production costs
Production taxes
Depletion and amortization

11.83
5.91
31.80

10.23
5.68
31.25

Total operating costs

49.54

47.16

Average price (1)

Gross margin

$

Gross margin percentage
(1)

8.29
14.3%

$

6.60
12.2%

Does not include the realized price effects of hedges

Commodity Price Derivative Activities
Changes in the market price of oil can significantly affect our profitability and cash flow. In the past we have entered into various commodity derivative
instruments to mitigate the risk associated with downward fluctuations in oil prices. These derivative instruments consisted exclusively of swaps. The
duration and size of our various derivative instruments varies, and depends on our view of market conditions, available contract prices and our operating
strategy.
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Commodity price derivative net realized gain was $0.04 million during the three months ended September 30, 2012, compared to a realized gain of $0.73
million for the three months ended September 30, 2011, for a decrease in realized gain of $0.69 million, or 95% decrease. We also recorded an unrealized
loss on commodity price derivatives of $0.13 million for the three months ended September 30, 2012 compared to no gain or loss during the three months
ended September 30, 2011, for a decrease of $0.13 million
Production costs
Production costs were $0.40 million for the three months ended September 30, 2012, as compared to $0.34 million during the three months ended September
30, 2011, a change of $0.06 million, or 18%. Production costs increased due to a larger number of producing wells in the three months ended September 30,
2012 compared to the three months ended September 30, 2011.
Production taxes
Production taxes were $0.20 million for the three months ended September 30, 2012, as compared to $0.19 million during the three months ended September
30, 2011, a change of $0.01 million, or 5%. Production taxes increased due to an increase in oil and gas revenues.
General and administrative expenses
General and administrative expenses were $1.52 million for the three months ended September 30, 2012, as compared to $1.98 million for the three months
ended September 30, 2011, a decrease of $0.46 million, or 23%. Our general and administrative expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2012
included approximately $0.54 million in non-cash compensation expense. General and administrative expenses for the three months ended September 30,
2011 included approximately $0.92 million in non-cash compensation expense. Excluding non-cash components, cash general and administrative expenses
were $0.94 million for the three months ended September 30, 2012 compared to $1.06 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011. Cash general
and administrative expenses during the three months ended September 30, 2012 decreased primarily as a result of a decrease in professional fees and third
party fees, but were also affected by general decreases in other general and administrative expense areas.
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Depreciation, depletion and amortization was $1.07 million for the three months ended September 30, 2012, as compared to $1.05 million during the three
months ended September 30, 2011, an increase of $0.02 million, or 2%. Depreciation, depletion, and amortization increased due to additional evaluated
properties added during the three months ended September 30, 2012 as compared to the three months ended September 30, 2011.
Interest expense
Interest expense was $2.15 million during the three months ended September 30, 2012, compared to $2.14 million during the three months ended September
30, 2011, an increase of $0.01 million, or 0.4%. During the three months ended September 30, 2012, interest included non-cash charges of $1.29 million,
compared to $1.50 million in the comparable period of 2011. Excluding non-cash components, cash interest was $0.86 million for the three months ended
September 30, 2012 compared to $0.64 in the comparable period of 2011.
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2012 compared to the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2011.
The Company reported a net loss for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 of approximately $12.78 million compared to a net loss of approximately
$11.53 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011.
Nine months ended September
30,
2012
2011
Revenues and other income:
Oil sales
Gas sales
Realized gain on commodity hedges
Unrealized gain on commodity price derivatives
Other
Total revenues and other income
Expenses:
Production costs
Production taxes
General and administrative
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Impairment of evaluated properties
Total expenses

$

Loss from continuing operations
Interest expense
Other
Conversion note derivative gain
Net loss

$
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4,685,713
397,298
49,729
445,609
132,367
5,710,711

$

5,534,325
446,386
402,256
222,788
110,282
6,716,037

1,033,635
561,278
5,099,932
2,897,156
3,274,718
12,866,719

1,114,220
630,718
8,837,802
3,194,301
13,777,041

(7,156,009)
(6,320,919)
(372)

(7,061,004)
(6,123,496)
63,115

700,000
1,587,699
(12,777,299) $ (11,533,686)

Oil and Gas Revenues and Production
Oil and gas revenues were $5.08 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012, as compared to $5.98 million for the nine months ended September
30, 2011, a decrease of $0.90 million, or 15%. Our production volume on a BOE basis was 80,005 for the nine months ended September 30, 2012, as
compared to 101,251 for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 a decrease of 21,246 BOE, or 21%. This decrease is primarily attributable to normal
decline curves related to mature properties, but partially offset by production attributable to wells drilled during the nine months ended September 30,
2012. Production declines were also partially offset by slightly higher average prices for both oil and gas.
Production and average prices for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 are presented in the following table:
Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2012
2011
Product:
Oil (Bbls)-volume
Oil (Bbls)-average price (1)

$

Natural gas (Mcf)-volume
NGL’s-(BOE)
Natural gas (Mcf)-average price (2)
Barrels of oil equivalent (BOE)
Average daily net production (BOE)
(1)
(2)

$

52,658
88.98

$

63,746
16,723
6.23
80,005
291

$

63,114
87.69
88,229
23,433
5.06
101,251
370

Does not include the realized price effects of hedges
Includes proceeds from the sale of NGL’s.

Oil and gas production expenses, depreciation, depletion and amortization
Nine Months
Ended
September 30,
2012
(per BOE)
$
63.53

Nine Months
Ended
September 30,
2011
(per BOE)
$
59.07

Production costs
Production taxes
Depletion and amortization

12.92
7.02
36.21

11.00
6.23
31.55

Total operating costs

56.15

48.78

Average price (1)

Gross margin

$

Gross margin percentage
(1)

7.38
12%

$

10.29
17%

Does not include the realized price effects of hedges

Commodity Price Derivative Activities
Changes in the market price of oil can significantly affect our profitability and cash flow. In the past we have entered into various commodity derivative
instruments to mitigate the risk associated with downward fluctuations in oil prices. These derivative instruments consisted exclusively of swaps. The
duration and size of our various derivative instruments varies, and depends on our view of market conditions, available contract prices and our operating
strategy.
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Commodity price derivative net realized gain was $0.05 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2012, as compared to a realized gain of $0.40
million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011, for a decrease in realized gain of $0.35 million, or 88%. We also recorded an unrealized gain on
commodity price derivatives of $0.45 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 compared to a gain of $0.22 million during the nine months
ended September 30, 2011, for an increase of $0.23 million, or 105%.
Production costs
Production costs were $1.03 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2012, as compared to $1.11 million for the nine months ended September
30, 2012, a decrease of $0.08 million, or 7%. Production costs decreased due to lower work over expenses during the nine months ended September 30,
2012.
Production taxes
Production taxes were $0.56 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2012, as compared to $0.63 million during the nine months ended
September 30, 2011, a decrease of $0.07 million, or 11%. Production taxes decreased due to the decrease in revenues during the nine months ended
September 30, 2012.
General and administrative expenses
General and administrative expenses were $5.10 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 compared to $8.84 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011, a decrease of $3.74 million, or 42%. General and administrative expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 included
approximately $1.07 million in non-cash compensation expense and $0.71 million for non-cash payment for consulting fees. General and administrative
expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 included approximately $5.50 million in non-cash compensation expense. Excluding non-cash
components, cash general and administrative expenses were $3.32 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 compared to $3.34 million for the
nine months ended September 30, 2011. Cash general and administrative expenses during the nine months ended September 30, 2012 decreased primarily as
a result of a decrease in payroll, legal and accounting fees and third party fees related to transactions, as well as being offset by general increases in other
general and administrative expense areas.
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Depreciation, depletion, and amortization were $2.90 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2012, as compared to $3.19 million during the
nine months ended September 30, 2011, a decrease of $.29 million, or 9%. Depreciation, depletion, and amortization decreased due lower unit volumes of oil
and gas sales and a declining cost center.
Expressed in dollars per BOE, depreciation, depletion, and amortization was $36.21 per BOE during the nine months ended September 30, 2012, as compared
to $31.55 during the nine months ended September 30, 2011.
Impairment of evaluated properties
Impairment of evaluated properties was $3.27 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2012, as compared to no impairment during the nine
months ended September 30, 2011. Impairment of evaluated properties increased due to capitalized costs exceeding the ceiling value as of the quarter ended
March 31, 2012.
Interest Expense
Interest expense was $6.32 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2012, compared to $6.12 million during the nine months ended September
30, 2011, an increase of $0.20 million, or 3%. During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, interest included non-cash charges of $3.8 million,
compared to $3.70 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011. Cash interest accruing on debt in 2012 decreased primarily as a result of lower
average term loan balances.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash used in operating activities during the nine months ending ended September 30, 2012 was $2.75 million; this use of cash, coupled with the cash used in
investing activities, exceeded cash provided by financing activities by $2.0 million, and resulted in a corresponding decrease in cash. This net use of cash
also substantially contributed to a $2.20 million decrease in working capital as of September 30, 2012 as compared to working capital as of December 31,
2011.
In the immediate term, the Company expects that additional capital will be required to fund its remaining capital budget for 2012, partially to fund some of
its ongoing overhead, and to provide additional capital to generally improve its working capital position. In March 2012, the Company secured
commitments to fund up to $5.0 million of additional convertible debentures, all of which had been funded as of September 30, 2012. (See Note 7—Loan
Agreements.)
Pursuant to our credit agreements with Hexagon, LLC (“Hexagon”), a substantial portion of our monthly net revenues from our producing properties is
required to be used for debt and interest payments. In addition, our debt instruments contain provisions that, absent consent of the lenders, may restrict our
ability to raise additional capital. Also, the Hexagon debt is currently due on December 31, 2013 and will need to be extended or retired prior to that date.
The Company will continue to pursue alternatives to address its working capital position and capital structure and to provide funding for the balance of its
planned 2012 expenditures.
On November 5, 2012, the Company liquidated all of its price derivatives for proceeds of $0.60 million.
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2012 Capital Budget
Our anticipated 2012 capital expenditure budget is currently expected to total $7-$9 million, of which approximately $4.7 million has been expended
through September 30, 2012. The remaining 2012 budget is allocated primarily to the drilling and completion of oil and gas wells in the DJ Basin in
Wyoming, Nebraska and Colorado targeting the conventional Muddy ‘J’ sand targets, and to the conventional development of certain Niobrara and Codell
properties.
Our 2012 drilling program has remained flexible in order to accommodate both the timing of the securing of adequate capital and to identify suitable well
locations. We anticipate funding the remainder of the 2012 capital program through a combination of the issuance of additional equity or debt securities,
use of existing working capital and operating cash flows, and from cash provided by potential joint venture participants and/or asset sales.
Other factors that could cause us to further increase our level of activity and adjust our capital expenditure budget include a reduction in service and material
costs, the formation of joint ventures with other exploration and production companies, the divestiture of non-strategic assets, a further improvement in
commodity prices or well performance that exceeds our forecasts, any of which could positively impact our operating cash flow. Factors that could cause us
to reduce level of activity and adjust our capital budget include, but are not limited to, increases in service and materials costs, reductions in commodity
prices or under-performance of wells relative to our forecasts, any of which could negatively impact our operating cash flow.
In order to fund the remainder of the 2012 budget, the Company will need to secure additional financing. We may also choose to sell certain non-strategic
assets in order to supplement the funding of our 2012 capital budget.
We cannot give assurances that our working capital on hand, our cash flow from operations or any available capital or borrowings, equity offerings or other
financings, or sales of non-strategic assets will be sufficient to fund our anticipated capital expenditures. If our existing and potential sources of investment
capital are not sufficient to undertake our planned 2012 capital expenditures, we may be required to reduce our 2012 drilling capital budget, curtail our
expenditures and/or restructure our operations.
Capital Resources
Currently, the majority of our cash flows from operations are applied to the payment of principal and interest of our loans and to capital expenditures. Due to
the continuing operating losses and the large amounts of capital expenditures during 2011 and continuing through 2012, our liquidity and working capital
have deteriorated. While we believe that we have sufficient liquidity and capital resources to maintain our staff and continue our current production
operations, we require additional capital to resolve our current working capital deficit and will also require substantial additional capital in order to fully test,
develop and evaluate our 141,000 gross (126,000 net) undeveloped acres. We expect to obtain this capital through a variety of sources, including, but not
limited to, future debt and equity financings and potentially from future joint venture partners. In the absence of near term major debt or equity financing or
other similar transaction, we may be required to sell certain assets in order to meet obligations as they arise. We can provide no assurance that we will be able
to secure a major financing, nor can we predict the terms of any future potential financing transactions.
Information about our financial position is presented in the following table:
September 30,
2012
Financial Position Summary
Cash and cash equivalents
Working capital
Balance outstanding on term loans and convertible debentures payable
Shareholders’ equity

$
$
$
$

698,276
(907,863)
33,692,339
39,311,760

December 31,
2011
$
$
$
$

2,707,722
1,294,706
29,680,636
49,668,225

During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, our working capital decreased to $(0.91 million) from $1.29 million at December 31, 2011. The lower
working capital and cash position is primarily the result of a combination of cash used in operating and investing activities, but partially offset by cash
provided by financing activities.
A summary of cash flow results during the nine months ended September 30, 2012 follows:
Nine Months
Ended
September 30,
2012
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities
Net change in cash
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$

(2,747,079)
(3,274,068)
4,011,701

$

(2,009,446)

During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, net cash used in operating activities was $2.75 million. The primary changes in operating cash during
the nine months ended September 30, 2012 were $12.78 million of net loss, adjusted for non-cash charges of $4.51 million of depreciation, depletion,
amortization and accretion expenses, $1.77 million of stock-based compensation, $3.27 million of impairment of evaluated properties, $2.23 million of
amortization of deferred financing costs and issuance of stock for convertible debentures interest, and non-cash change in fair value of convertible debentures
conversion option of $0.70 million, and offset by a non-cash charge for the change in commodity price derivatives of $0.45 million.
During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, net cash used in investing activities was $3.27 million. The primary changes in investing cash during the
nine months ended September 30, 2012 were $0.44 million related to our acquisitions of unproved acreage and drilling capital expenditures of $4.28
million, offset by the proceeds from the sale of undeveloped properties of $1.44 million.
During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, net cash provided by financing activities was $4.01 million. The changes in financing cash during the
nine months ended September 30, 2012 were from net proceeds from the issuance of new convertible debentures of $5.00 million, offset by the net
repayments of debt of $0.98 million.
Term Loans
The Company entered into three separate loan agreements with Hexagon during 2010. All three loans bear annual interest of 15% and mature on December
31, 2013.
Effective January 29, 2010, the Company entered into a $4.5 million loan agreement, with an original maturity date of December 1, 2010. Effective March
25, 2010, the Company entered into a $6.00 million loan agreement, with an original maturity date of December 1, 2010. Effective April 14, 2010, the
Company entered into a $15 million loan agreement, with an original maturity date of December 1, 2010. All three loan agreements have similar terms,
including customary representations and warranties and indemnification, and require the Company to repay the loans with the proceeds of the monthly net
revenues from the production of the acquired properties. The loans contain cross collateralization and cross default provisions and are collateralized by
mortgages against a portion of the Company’s developed and undeveloped leasehold acreage as well as all related equipment purchased in the Wilke Field,
Albin Field, and State Line Field acquisitions.
We entered into a loan modification agreement on May 28, 2010, which extended the maturity date of the loans to December 1, 2011. In consideration for
extending the maturity of the loans, Hexagon received 250,000 warrants with an exercise price of $6.00 per share. The loan modification agreement also
required the Company to issue 250,000 five year warrants to purchase common stock at $6.00 per share to Hexagon if the Company did not repay the loans in
full by January 1, 2011. Since the loans were not paid in full by January 1, 2011, the Company issued 250,000 additional warrants with an exercise price of
$6.00 per share to Hexagon which was valued at approximately $1.60 million. This amount was recorded as a deferred financing cost and is being amortized
over the remaining term of the loan.
In December 2010, Hexagon extended the maturity to September 1, 2011. During the last six months of 2011, Hexagon agreed to temporarily suspend for
five months the requirement to remit monthly net revenues in the total amount of approximately $2.00 million as payment on the loans. In November 2011,
Hexagon extended the maturity to January 1, 2013. In November 2011, Hexagon also temporarily advanced the Company an additional amount of $0.31
million, which was repaid in full in February 2012. In March 2012, Hexagon extended the maturity of the loans to June 30, 2013, and in connection
therewith, the Company agreed to make minimum monthly loan payments of $0.33 million, effective immediately. In July 2012, Hexagon extended the
maturity date to September 30, 2013. In November 2012, Hexagon extended the maturity date to December 31, 2013.
As of September 30, 2012, the total debt outstanding under these facilities is $20.29 million, of which $0.87 million is current portion of long term debt.
The Company is subject to certain financial and non-financial covenants with respect to the Hexagon loan agreements. As of September 30, 2012, the
Company was in compliance with all covenants under the facilities. If any of the covenants are violated, and the Company is unable to negotiate a waiver or
amendment thereof, the lender would have the right to declare an event of default and accelerate all principal and interest outstanding.
Convertible Debentures Payable
In February 2011, the Company completed a private placement of $8.40 million aggregate principal amount of three year 8% Senior Secured Convertible
Debentures (the "Debentures") with a group of accredited investors. Initially, the Debentures were convertible at any time at the holders' option into shares
of our common stock at $9.40 per share, subject to certain adjustments, including the requirement to reset the conversion price based upon any subsequent
equity offering at a lower price per share amount. Interest on the Debentures is payable quarterly on each May 15, August 15, November 15 and February 15
in cash or at the Company's option in shares of common stock, valued at 95% of the volume weighted average price of the common stock for the 10 trading
days prior to an interest payment date. The Company can redeem some or all of the Debentures at any time. The redemption price is 115% of principal plus
accrued interest. If the holders of the Debentures elect to convert the Debentures, following notice of redemption, the conversion price will include a makewhole premium equal to the remaining interest through the 18 month anniversary of the original issue date of the Debentures, payable in common stock. T.R.
Winston & Company LLC acted as placement agent for the private placement and received $0.40 million of Debentures equal to 5% of the gross proceeds
from the sale. The Company is amortizing the $0.40 million over the life of the loan as deferred financing costs. The Company amortized $0.13 million of
deferred financing costs into interest expense during the nine months ended September 30, 2012, and has $0.18 million of deferred financing costs to be
amortized through February 2014.
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In December, 2011, the Company agreed to amend the Debentures to lower the conversion price to $4.25 from $9.40 per share.
This amendment was an inducement consideration to the Debenture holders for their agreement to release a mortgage on certain properties so the properties
could be sold. The sale of these properties was effective December 31, 2011, and a final closing occurred during the three months ended March 31, 2012.
On March 19, 2012, the Company entered into agreements with some of its existing Debenture holders to increase the amount of its Debentures by up to an
additional $5.0 million (the “Supplemental Debentures”). Under the terms of the Supplemental Debenture agreements, proceeds derived from the issuance of
Supplemental Debentures are to be used principally for the development of certain of the Company's proved undeveloped properties, and other undeveloped
leases currently targeted by the Company for exploration, as well as for other general corporate purposes. Any new producing properties that are developed
from the proceeds of Supplemental Debentures are to be pledged as collateral under a mortgage to secure future payment of the Debentures and Supplemental
Debentures. All terms of the Supplemental Debentures are substantively identical to the Debentures. The Agreements also provided for the payment of
additional consideration to the purchasers of Supplemental Debentures in the form of a proportionately reduced, 5% carried working interest in any
properties developed with the proceeds of the Supplemental Debenture offering.
Through July 2012, we received $3.04 million of proceeds from the issuance of Supplemental Debentures, which were used for the drilling and development
of six new wells, resulting in a total investment of $3.69 million. Five of these wells resulted in commercial production, and one well was plugged and
abandoned.
In August 2012, the Company and certain holders of the Supplemental Debentures agreed to renegotiate the terms of the Supplemental Debenture
offering. These negotiations concluded with the issuance of an additional $1.96 million of Supplemental Debentures. The August 2012 modifications to the
Supplemental Debenture agreements increased the carried working interest from 5% to 10% and also provided for a one-year, proportionately reduced net
profits interest of 15% in the properties developed with the proceeds of the Supplemental Debenture offering, as well as the next four properties to be drilled
and developed by the Company.
The Company has estimated the total value of consideration paid to Supplemental Debenture holders in the form of the modified net profits interest and
carried working interest to be approximately $1.16 million, and recorded this amount as a debt discount to be amortized over the remaining life of the
Debentures.
We periodically engage a third party valuation firm to complete a valuation of the conversion feature associated with the Debentures, and with respect to
September 30, 2012, the Supplemental Debentures. This valuation resulted in an estimated derivative liability as of September 30, 2012 and December 31,
2011 of $1.3 million and $1.3 million, respectively. The portion of the derivative liability that is associated with the Supplemental Debentures, in the
approximate amount of $0.70 million, has been recorded as a debt discount, and is being amortized over the remaining life of the Supplemental Debentures.
During the nine and three months ended September 30, 2012, the Company amortized $1.65 million and $0.71 million, respectively of debt discounts.
On September 8, 2012, the Company issued 50,000 shares, valued at $0.23 million, to T.R. Winston & Company LLC for acting as a placement agent of the
Supplemental Debentures. The Company is amortizing the $0.23 million over the life of the loan as deferred financing costs. The Company amortized $0.01
million of deferred financing costs into interest expense during the nine months ended September 30, 2012, and has $0.22 million of deferred financing costs
to be amortized through February 2014.
As of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the convertible debt is recorded as follows:
As of
As of
September 30,
December 31,
2012
2011
$ 13,400,000 $
8,400,000
(3,804,947)
(3,470,932)
$
9,595,053 $
4,929,068

Convertible debentures
Debt discount
Total convertible debentures, net
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Annual debt maturities as of September 30, 2012 are as follows:
Year 1
Year 2
Thereafter
Total

$

$

873,142
32,819,197
33,692,339

Interest Expense
For the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company incurred interest expense of approximately $6.32 million and $6.12 million,
respectively, of which approximately $3.8 million and $3.70 million, respectively, were non-cash interest expense and amortization of the deferred financing
costs, accretion of the convertible debentures payable discount, and convertible debentures payable interest paid in stock.
For the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company incurred interest expense of approximately $6.32 million and $6.12 million,
respectively, of which approximately $3.86 million and $3.70 million, respectively, were non-cash interest expense and amortization of the deferred
financing costs, accretion of the convertible debentures payable discount, and convertible debentures payable interest paid in stock.
Obligations and Commitments
We have the following contractual obligations and commitments as of September 30, 2012 (in thousands):

Contractual obligations
Secured debt
Interest on secured debt
Convertible debentures
Interest on convertible debentures
Operating leases
Total contractual cash obligations (1)

$

$

Total
20,292,339
4,016,115
13,400,000
1,608,000
54,000

Payments due by period
Within 1
year
2-3 years
4-5 years
$
873,142
$ 19,419,197
$
—
3,026,858
989,257
—
—
13,400,000
—
1,072,000
536,000
—
54,000
—
—

More than
5 years
$
—
—
—
—
—

39,370,454

$

$

5,026,000

$

34,344,454

$

—

—

(1) We could be liable for liquidated damages under registration rights agreements covering approximately 3.2 million shares of our common stock if we fail
to maintain the effectiveness of a prior registration statement as required in the agreements. In such case, we would be required to pay monthly liquidated
damages of up to $0.23 million. The maximum aggregate liquidated damages are capped at $1.37 million.
Under the terms of the Supplemental Debenture agreements, the Company has a commitment to drill four additional wells. Such agreements do not specify
the location, timing, target zones, or other conditions related to these wells. However, the Company anticipates that the capital commitment required to
satisfy this provision will be approximately $3.3 million.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.
Plan of Operations
Our plan of operations for through the remainder of 2012 is to identify and develop oil and natural gas prospects from our existing inventory of undeveloped
acreage. In this regard, we have gradually added structure and staffing to our company as we become the operator of an increasing number of acquired
properties. By acting as the operator, we have greater control over operating, drilling and developmental decisions, and would expect to generally better
control our overall finding costs as we increase our exploration and development activities.
We anticipate the investment of substantial capital during the next few years to evaluate, assess and develop our existing inventory 141,000 gross, 126,000
net acres of developed and undeveloped oil and gas leases.
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The acquisition and development of properties and prospects and the pursuit of fresh opportunities require that we maintain access to adequate levels of
capital. We will strive for an optimal balance between our property portfolio and our capital structuring that will allow for growth designed to build
shareholder value and profitability. The decisions around the balancing of capital needs and property holdings will be a challenge to us as well as all
companies in the entire energy industry during this time of continued disruption in the financial markets and an increasingly complex global economic
picture. As a function of balancing properties and capital, we may decide to monetize certain properties to reduce debt or to allow us to acquire interests in
new prospects or producing properties that may be better suited to the current economic and energy industry environment.
The business of oil and natural gas acquisition, exploration and development is capital intensive and the level of operations attainable by an oil and gas
company is directly linked to and limited by the amount of available capital. Therefore, a principal part of our plan of operations is to raise the additional
capital required to finance the exploration and development of our current oil and natural gas prospects and the acquisition of additional properties. As
explained above in the “Liquidity and Capital Resources” section, based on our present working capital and current rate of cash flow from operations, we will
need to raise additional capital to partially fund our overhead, and fund our exploration and development budget through, at least, December 31, 2012. We
will seek additional capital through the sale of our securities and we will endeavor to obtain additional capital through debt and project financing. However,
as described further below, under the terms of our $21.0 million credit facilities, we are prohibited from incurring any additional debt from third parties
without prior consent from our lender. Our ability to obtain additional capital through new debt instruments and project financing may be subject to the
repayment of our $21.0 million credit facility.
We intend to use the services of independent consultants and contractors to perform various professional services, including land, legal, environmental,
investor relations and tax services. We believe that by limiting our management and employee costs, we may be able to better control total costs and retain
flexibility in terms of project management.
Marketing and Pricing
We derive revenue principally from the sale of oil and natural gas. As a result, our revenues are determined, to a large degree, by prevailing prices for crude
oil and natural gas. We sell our oil and natural gas on the open market at prevailing market prices or through forward delivery contracts. The market price for
oil and natural gas is dictated by supply and demand, and we cannot accurately predict or control the price we may receive for our oil and natural gas.
Our revenues, cash flows, profitability and future rate of growth will depend substantially upon prevailing prices for oil and natural gas. Prices may also
affect the amount of cash flow available for capital expenditures and our ability to borrow money or raise additional capital. Lower prices may also adversely
affect the value of our reserves and make it uneconomical for us to commence or continue production levels of oil and natural gas. Historically, the prices
received for oil and natural gas have fluctuated widely. Among the factors that can cause these fluctuations are:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

changes in global supply and demand for oil and natural gas;
the actions of the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries, or OPEC;
the price and quantity of imports of foreign oil and natural gas;
acts of war or terrorism;
political conditions and events, including embargoes, affecting oil-producing activity;
the level of global oil and natural gas exploration and production activity;
the level of global oil and natural gas inventories;
weather conditions;
technological advances affecting energy consumption; and
the price and availability of alternative fuels.

From time to time, we will enter into hedging arrangements to reduce our exposure to decreases in the prices of oil and natural gas. Hedging arrangements
may expose us to risk of significant financial loss in some circumstances including circumstances where:
●
●
●

our production and/or sales of natural gas are less than expected;
payments owed under derivative hedging contracts come due prior to receipt of the hedged month’s production revenue; or
the counter party to the hedging contract defaults on its contract obligations.

In addition, hedging arrangements may limit the benefit we would receive from increases in the prices for oil and natural gas. We cannot assure you that any
hedging transactions we may enter into will adequately protect us from declines in the prices of oil and natural gas. On the other hand, where we choose not
to engage in hedging transactions in the future, we may be more adversely affected by changes in oil and natural gas prices than our competitors who engage
in hedging transactions.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States, or GAAP, requires
our management to make assumptions and estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, as well as the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of our financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The
following is a summary of the significant accounting policies and related estimates that affect our financial disclosures.
Critical accounting policies are defined as those significant accounting policies that are most critical to an understanding of a company’s financial condition
and results of operation. We consider an accounting estimate or judgment to be critical if (i) it requires assumptions to be made that were uncertain at the time
the estimate was made, and (ii) changes in the estimate or different estimates that could have been selected could have a material impact on our results of
operations or financial condition.
Use of Estimates
The financial statements included herein were prepared from the records of Recovery in accordance with GAAP, and reflect all normal recurring adjustments
which are, in the opinion of management, necessary to provide a fair statement of the results of operations and financial position for the interim periods. The
preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
oil and gas reserves, assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. We evaluate our estimates on an on-going basis and base our estimates on historical experience and on
various other assumptions we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Although actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions, we believe that our estimates are reasonable. Our most significant financial estimates are associated with our estimated proved oil
and gas reserves as well as valuation of common stock used in various issuances of common stock, options and warrants and estimated fair value of the asset
held for sale.
Oil and Natural Gas Reserves
We follow the full cost method of accounting. All of our oil and gas properties are located within the United States, and therefore all costs related to the
acquisition and development of oil and gas properties are capitalized into a single cost center referred to as a full cost pool. Depletion of exploration and
development costs and depreciation of production equipment is computed using the units-of-production method based upon estimated proved oil and gas
reserves. Under the full cost method of accounting, capitalized oil and gas property costs less accumulated depletion and net of deferred income taxes may
not exceed an amount equal to the present value, discounted at 10%, of estimated future net revenues from proved oil and gas reserves less the future cash
outflows associated with the asset retirement obligations that have been accrued on the balance sheet plus the cost, or estimated fair value if lower, of
unproved properties. Should capitalized costs exceed this ceiling, impairment would be recognized. Under the SEC rules, we prepared our oil and gas
reserve estimates as of September 30, 2012, using the average, first-day-of-the-month price during the 12-month period ending September 30, 2012.
Estimating accumulations of gas and oil is complex and is not exact because of the numerous uncertainties inherent in the process. The process relies on
interpretations of available geological, geophysical, engineering and production data. The extent, quality and reliability of this technical data can vary. The
process also requires certain economic assumptions, some of which are mandated by the SEC, such as gas and oil prices, drilling and operating expenses,
capital expenditures, taxes and availability of funds. The accuracy of a reserve estimate is a function of the quality and quantity of available data; the
interpretation of that data; the accuracy of various mandated economic assumptions; and the judgment of the persons preparing the estimate.
We believe estimated reserve quantities and the related estimates of future net cash flows are the most important estimates made by an exploration and
production company such as ours because they affect the perceived value of our company, are used in comparative financial analysis ratios, and are used as
the basis for the most significant accounting estimates in our financial statements, including the quarterly calculation of depletion, depreciation and
impairment of our proved oil and natural gas properties. Proved oil and natural gas reserves are the estimated quantities of crude oil, natural gas, and natural
gas liquids that geological and engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future periods from known reservoirs under
existing economic and operating conditions. We determine anticipated future cash inflows and future production and development costs by applying
benchmark prices and costs, including transportation, quality and basis differentials, in effect at the end of each quarter to the estimated quantities of oil and
natural gas remaining to be produced as of the end of that quarter. We reduce expected cash flows to present value using a discount rate that depends upon
the purpose for which the reserve estimates will be used. For example, the standardized measure calculation requires us to apply a 10% discount
rate. Although reserve estimates are inherently imprecise, and estimates of new discoveries and undeveloped locations are more imprecise than those of
established proved producing oil and natural gas properties, we make considerable effort to estimate our reserves, including through the use of independent
reserves engineering consultants. We expect that quarterly reserve estimates will change in the future as additional information becomes available or as oil
and natural gas prices and operating and capital costs change. We evaluate and estimate our oil and natural gas reserves as of December 31 of each year and
quarterly throughout the year. For purposes of depletion, depreciation, and impairment, we adjust reserve quantities at all quarterly periods for the estimated
impact of acquisitions and dispositions. Changes in depletion, depreciation or impairment calculations caused by changes in reserve quantities or net cash
flows are recorded in the period in which the reserves or net cash flow estimate changes.
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Oil and Natural Gas Properties—Full Cost Method of Accounting
We use the full cost method of accounting whereby all costs related to the acquisition and development of oil and natural gas properties are capitalized into a
single cost center referred to as a full cost pool. These costs include land acquisition costs, geological and geophysical expenses, carrying charges on nonproducing properties, costs of drilling and overhead charges directly related to acquisition and exploration activities.
Capitalized costs, together with the costs of production equipment, are depleted and amortized on the unit-of-production method based on the estimated
gross proved reserves as determined by independent petroleum engineers. For this purpose, we convert our petroleum products and reserves to a common unit
of measure.
Costs of acquiring and evaluating unproved properties are initially excluded from depletion calculations. These unevaluated properties are assessed
quarterly to ascertain whether impairment has occurred. When proved reserves are assigned or the property is considered to be impaired, the cost of the
property or the amount of the impairment is added to the full cost pool and becomes subject to depletion calculations.
Proceeds from the sale of oil and natural gas properties are applied against capitalized costs, with no gain or loss recognized, unless the sale would alter the
rate of depletion by more than 25%. Royalties paid, net of any tax credits received, are netted against oil and natural gas sales.
In applying the full cost method, we perform a ceiling test on properties that restricts the capitalized costs, less accumulated depletion, from exceeding an
amount equal to the estimated undiscounted value of future net revenues from proved oil and natural gas reserves, as determined by independent petroleum
engineers. The estimated future revenues are based on sales prices achievable under existing contracts and posted average reference prices in effect at the end
of the applicable period, and current costs, and after deducting estimated future general and administrative expenses, production related expenses, financing
costs, future site restoration costs and income taxes. Under the full cost method of accounting, capitalized oil and natural gas property costs, less
accumulated depletion and net of deferred income taxes, may not exceed an amount equal to the present value, discounted at 10%, of estimated future net
revenues from proved oil and natural gas reserves, plus the cost, or estimated fair value if lower, of unproved properties. Should capitalized costs exceed this
ceiling, we would recognize impairment.
As of September 30, 2012, the Company has one well in progress that has been drilled, completed and is pending further evaluation as to its potential to
ultimately produce commercial quantities of hydrocarbons. This well is currently carried at a cost of $3.82 million. The Company believes that this well
should be ultimately capable of commercial production, but will need to invest additional capital to obtain this status. However, should this well be
ultimately plugged and abandoned, all capitalized costs would be transferred to the full cost pool. Given the current status of the ceiling tests as of
September 30, 2012, the current carrying costs would exceed the ceiling by the amount of $1.44 million, which would flow through the income statement as
an expense if the well were assumed to be non-productive as of September 30, 2012.
Likewise, operations that are being conducted on this well are extending the primary terms of leases that comprise approximately 6,919 net acres and that are
currently being carried at a cost of approximately $4.1 million. Absent a successful completion of this well, the lease terms of some or all of these acres may
expire, and the carrying costs of these leases would also be subject to the ceiling test.
Revenue Recognition
The Company derives revenue primarily from the sale of produced natural gas and crude oil. The Company reports revenue as the gross amount received
before taking into account production taxes and transportation costs, which are reported as separate expenses and are included in oil and gas production
expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Revenue is recorded in the month the Company’s production is delivered to the
purchaser, but payment is generally received between 30 and 90 days after the date of production. No revenue is recognized unless it is determined that title
to the product has transferred to the purchaser. At the end of each month, the Company estimates the amount of production delivered to the purchaser and the
price the Company will receive. The Company uses its knowledge of its properties, their historical performance, NYMEX and local spot market prices,
quality and transportation differentials, and other factors as the basis for these estimates.
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Share Based Compensation
The Company accounts for share-based compensation by estimating the fair value of share-based payment awards made to employees and directors,
including restricted stock grants, on the date of grant. The value of the portion of the award that is ultimately expected to vest is recognized as an expense
ratably over the requisite service periods.
Derivative Instruments
Periodically, the Company entered into swaps to reduce the effect of price changes on a portion of our future oil production. We reflect the fair market value
of our derivative instruments on our balance sheet. Our estimates of fair value are determined by obtaining independent market quotes as well as utilizing a
valuation model that is based upon underlying forward curve data and risk free interest rates. Changes in commodity prices will result in substantially similar
changes in the fair value of our commodity derivative agreements. We do not apply hedge accounting to any of our derivative contracts, therefore we
recognize mark-to-market gains and losses in earnings currently.
Item 3.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risk represents the risk of loss that may impact our financial position, results of operations, or cash flows due to adverse changes in financial market
prices, including interest rate risk, foreign currency exchange rate risk, commodity price risk, and other relevant market or price risks.
Commodities Price Risk. Our financial condition, results of operations and capital resources are dependent upon the prevailing market prices of oil and
natural gas. These commodity prices are subject to wide fluctuations and market uncertainties due to a variety of factors that are beyond our control. Factors
influencing oil and natural gas prices include the level of global demand for crude oil, the foreign supply of oil and natural gas, the establishment of and
compliance with production quotas by oil exporting countries, weather conditions which determine the demand for natural gas, the price and availability of
alternative fuels and overall economic conditions. It is impossible to predict future oil and natural gas prices with any degree of certainty. Sustained
weakness in oil and natural gas prices may adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations, and may also reduce the amount of oil and
natural gas reserves that we can produce economically. Any reduction in our oil and natural gas reserves, including reductions due to price fluctuations, can
have an adverse effect on our ability to obtain capital for our development activities.
In order to protect the Company from uncertainty associated with oil and natural gas prices we entered into the following:
On December 21, 2011, we entered into a Commodity Fixed Price Swap contract that covers approximately 40% of our forecasted 2012 oil production. This
contract covers 100 bopd throughout 2012, or a total of 36,600 barrels, and establishes a fixed sales price per barrel of $96.25. At the end of each month in
2012, the fixed price is compared to a floating price equal to the average of settlement prices of the Nymex Prompt month WTI crude oil contract. If the fixed
price is less than the floating price, then the Company will make an immediate payment to the swap counterparty equal to the difference in the fixed and
floating prices multiplied by the monthly oil volume (3,000 barrels in a 30 day month). Alternatively, if the fixed price is more than the floating price, then
we will receive a payment from the swap counterparty equal to the difference between the fixed and floating prices multiplied by the monthly volume.
On March 21, 2012, we entered into a similar Commodity Fixed Price Swap contract that covers 100 bopd throughout the first six months of 2013, or a total
of 18,100 barrels, and establishes a fixed sales price per barrel of $106.25.
On September 7, 2012, we entered into a similar Commodity Fixed Price Swap contract that covers 100 bopd throughout 2013, or a total of 36,500 barrels,
and establishes a fixed sales price per barrel of $96.90.
As of September 30, 2012, we marked these swaps to market, based upon the estimated forward floating price of each contract as compared to the current
market price for crude oil, and recorded an unrealized commodity derivative receivable asset related to these Swap contracts of approximately $0.37 million.
On November 5, 2012, the Company liquidated all of its price derivatives for proceeds of $0.60 million.
We may, from time to time, enter into other similar agreements in order to hedge oil prices from future substantial price swings.
Interest Rate Risk. We have minimal interest rate risk as all of our debt currently provides for fixed interest rates. However, we may enter into future
transactions that could result in higher interest rates, or in floating or adjustable interest rates that could expose the Company to additional interest rate risks.
Foreign Currency Risk. We do not currently have any substantial exposure to foreign currency risk.
Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of September 30, 2012, the end
of the period covered by this report. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of September
30, 2012, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports filed or submitted under
the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the rules and forms of the SEC, and that information
required to be disclosed by us in such reports is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
We regularly review our system of internal control over financial reporting and make changes to our processes and systems to improve controls and increase
efficiency, while ensuring that we maintain an effective internal control environment. Changes may include such activities as implementing new, systems
that are more efficient, consolidating activities, and migrating processes.
In our Annual Report on Form 10K/A for the year ended December 31, 2011, we noted that the following material weaknesses in our internal control over
financial reporting existed as of December 31, 2011:
●
●
●

Insufficient independent internal review and approval of critical accounting schedules used in the preparation of financial statements.
The financial statement close process did not permit timely preparation of necessary financial information and there is inadequate documentation of
internal controls for some assertions in certain significant accounts.
Lack of effective controls over general ledger processing, spreadsheets and data back-up.

These material weaknesses continued to exist during the three months ending March 31, 2012, June 30, 2012, and September 30, 2012.
We have implemented the following new internal controls during the three months ending September 30, 2012:
Remediation Activities:
●

Additional controls were implemented during 2012 within the areas of internal controls over financial reporting including (but not limited to) the
implementation of a new accounting system, timely management contract review and tracking, journal entry review and posting procedures, the
timely and consistent reconciliation of balance sheet accounts to mitigate the risk of financial reporting inaccuracies, revenue recognition
procedures, and month-over-month financial analyses to allow for trend analysis and the timely capture of coding errors. Additional controls were
implemented over daily financial network and application data backups to an off-site server to ensure the safety and redundancy of shareholder data
and the ability to retrieve shareholder data as needed.

●

Management believes the implementation and timely testing of these controls will assist with the accuracy of the financial schedules and statements.
All financial statement assertion gaps have been addressed by the implementation of these new controls.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2012, based on the framework
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation,
management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of September 30, 2012 and that the material weaknesses
documented in the Annual Report on Form 10K/A for the year ending December 31, 2011 continue to exist but that significant effort has been made to
remediate these issues and that management expects the material weaknesses will be fully remediated by December 31, 2012.
Other than as noted above, there were no other changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the
Exchange Act) that occurred during the quarter ended September 30, 2012 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.
Limitations in Control Systems
Our controls and procedures are designed at a reasonable assurance level. In designing and evaluating our controls and procedures, management recognizes
that, because of inherent limitations, any system of controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not
absolute, assurance of achieving the desired objectives of the control system. In addition, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are
resource constraints, and management must apply its judgment in evaluating the benefits of possible controls relative to their costs. Further, no evaluation of
controls and procedures can provide absolute assurance that all errors, control issues, and instances of fraud will be prevented or detected. Controls can also
be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the controls. The design of any
system of controls and procedures is also based in part on certain assumptions regarding the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that
any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions.
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings.
Currently we are not aware of any material litigation pending or threatened by or against the Company.
Item 1A. Risk Factors.
There have been no material changes in our Risk Factors from those reported in Item 1A of Part I of our 2011 Annual Report on Form 10-K/A filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, which we incorporate by reference herein, except that we have the following new risk factor which was included in our
Quarterly Report on form 10-Q for the quarters ended March 31, 2012 and June 30, 2012:
If oil or natural gas prices decrease or exploration and development efforts are unsuccessful, wells in progress are deemed unsuccessful, or major tracts of
undeveloped leases expire, or other similar adverse events occur, we may be required to write-down the carrying value of our evaluated properties.
We use the full cost method of accounting whereby all costs related to the acquisition and development of oil and natural gas properties are capitalized into a
single cost center referred to as a full cost pool. These costs include land acquisition costs, geological and geophysical expenses, carrying charges on nonproducing properties, costs of drilling wells, completing productive wells, or plugging and abandoning non-productive wells, costs related to expired leases,
or leases underlying producing and non-producing wells, and overhead charges directly related to acquisition and exploration activities. Under the full cost
method of accounting, capitalized oil and natural gas property that comprise the full cost pool, less accumulated depletion and net of deferred income taxes,
may not exceed an amount equal to the present value, discounted at 10%, of estimated future net revenues from proved oil and natural gas reserves. This
ceiling test is performed at least quarterly. Should the capitalized costs of the full cost pool exceed this ceiling, we would recognize impairment expense.
Effective with our report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2012, we recognized impairment expenses in the amount of approximately $3.3
million related to impairment of the carrying value of the evaluated properties that comprised the full cost pool. Future write-downs could occur for
numerous reasons, including, but not limited to reductions in oil and gas prices that lower the estimate of future net revenues from proved oil and natural gas
reserves, revisions to reserve estimates, or from the addition of non-productive capitalized costs to the full cost pool that do not result in corresponding
increase in oil and gas reserves. Impairments of unevaluated leases and plugging and abandonment of wells in progress are other areas where costs may be
capitalized into the full cost pool, without any corresponding increase in reserve values; as such, these situations could result in future additional impairment
expenses.
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.
On March 19, 2012, the Company entered into agreements with some of its existing Debenture holders to increase the amount of its Debentures by up to an
additional $5.0 million (the “Supplemental Debentures”). Under the terms of the Supplemental Debenture Agreements, proceeds derived from the issuance of
Supplemental Debentures are to be used principally for the development of certain of the Company's proved undeveloped properties, and other undeveloped
leases currently targeted by the Company for exploration, as well as for other working capital purposes. Any new producing properties that are developed
from the proceeds of Supplemental Debentures are to be pledged as collateral to secure future payment of the Debentures. All terms of the Supplemental
Debentures are substantively identical to the Debentures.
As of September 30, 2012, we received $5.0 million of proceeds from the issuance of Supplemental Debentures, which were used for the drilling and
development of six new wells, resulting in a total investment of $3.69 million. The remaining $1.31 million was used for general corporate purposes. Five of
the wells drilled with the proceeds of the Supplemental Debentures resulted in commercial production, and one well was plugged and abandoned. Under the
terms of the Supplemental Debenture agreements, as amended, the Company also has an obligation to drill four additional wells that will be subject to the
terms of such agreements.
The $5.0 million of convertible debentures that have been issued are currently convertible into 1,176,471 shares of common stock, at the rate of $4.25 per
common share, subject to adjustment under certain circumstances. Under the terms of the March 19, 2012 agreements as amended, we have no obligation to
register any of the convertible debentures that are or may be issued, or any of the underlying common stock that may be issued upon conversion of any such
convertible debentures.
Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.
None.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.
Not Applicable
Item 5. Other Information.
None.
29

Item 6. Exhibits
Exhibit
Number
31.1
31.2
32.1
32.2

Exhibit Description
Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the registrant caused this amended report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
Recovery Energy, Inc.
Date: November 9, 2012

By: /s/ Roger A. Parker
Roger A. Parker
Chief Executive Officer

Date: November 9, 2012

By: /s/ A. Bradley Gabbard
A. Bradley Gabbard
Chief Financial Officer

Date: November 9, 2012

By: /s/ Eric Ulwelling
Eric Ulwelling
Principal Accounting Officer
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Exhibit Number Exhibit Description
31.1
Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002
31.2
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002
32.1
Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002
32.2
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Roger A. Parker, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-Q of Recovery Energy, Inc. ("Registrant");
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The Registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d15(f)) for the Registrant and have:
a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c. evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
d. disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the Registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The Registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
Registrant's auditors and the audit committee of Registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.
/s/ ROGER A. PARKER
Roger A. Parker
Chief Executive Officer
November 9, 2012

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, A. Bradley Gabbard, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-Q of Recovery Energy, Inc. ("Registrant");
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The Registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d15(f)) for the Registrant and have:
a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c. evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
d. disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the Registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The Registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
Registrant's auditors and the audit committee of Registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

/s/ A. BRADLEY GABBARD
A. Bradley Gabbard
Chief Financial Officer
November 9, 2012

Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Quarterly Report of Recovery Energy, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2012, as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), the undersigned hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
/s/ ROGER A. PARKER
Roger A. Parker
Chief Executive Officer
November 9, 2012

Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Quarterly Report of Recovery Energy, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2012, as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), the undersigned hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
/s/ A. BRADLEY GABBARD
A. Bradley Gabbard
Chief Financial Officer
November 9, 2012

